
Licensing Sub-Committee
Date: Tuesday, 8 June 2021
Time: 10.00 am
Venue: Committee Room A, South Walks House, South 

Walks Road, Dorchester, DT1 1UZ (DT1 1EE for 
sat nav)

Membership: (Quorum 3 ) 
Councillors Derek Beer, Cathy Lugg and Emma Parker

Chief Executive: Matt Prosser, South Walks House, South Walks Road, 
Dorchester, Dorset DT1 1UZ (Sat Nav DT1 1EE)

For more information about this agenda please telephone Democratic Services   
01305 224202 elaine.tibble@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk

For easy access to the Council agendas and minutes download the free public 
app Mod.gov for use on your iPad, Android and Windows tablet. Once 
downloaded select Dorset Council.
 

Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting with the exception of any items 
listed in the exempt part of this agenda. Please note that if you attend a committee 
meeting and are invited to make oral representations your name, together with a summary 
of your comments will be recorded in the minutes of the meeting. Please refer to the guide 
to public participation at committee meetings for more information about speaking at 
meetings. There is a Hearing Loop Induction System available for public use on request. 
Please speak to a Democratic Services Officer for assistance in using this facility. 
Recording, photographing and using social media at meetings Dorset Council is 
committed to being open and transparent in the way it carries out its business whenever 
possible. Anyone can film, audio-record, take photographs, and use social media such as 
tweeting and blogging to report the meeting when it is open to the public, so long as they 
conform to the Protocol for filming and audio recording of public council meetings.

Public Document Pack



A G E N D A

Page No.

1  ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN AND STATEMENT FOR THE 
PROCEDURE OF THE MEETING

5 - 8

To elect a Chairman for the meeting and the Chairman to present and 
explain the procedure for the meeting. 

2  APOLOGIES

To receive any apologies for absence.

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To disclose any pecuniary, other registerable or personal interest as 
set out in the adopted Code of Conduct. In making their disclosure 
councillors are asked to state the agenda item, the nature of the 
interest and any action they propose to take as part of their 
declaration. 

If required, further advice should be sought from the Monitoring Officer 
in advance of the meeting.

4  URGENT ITEMS

To consider any items of business which the Chairman has had prior 
notification and considers to be urgent pursuant to section 100B (4) b) 
of the Local Government Act 1972. The reason for the urgency shall 
be recorded in the minutes.

5  VARIATION FOR THE CIDER SHED, BURTON BRADSTOCK 9 - 36

An application has been made to vary the licence at The Cider Shed, 
Bredy Farm, Burton Bradstock. The application has been out to public 
consultation and attracted representations. A Licensing Sub-
Committee must consider the application and representations at a 
public hearing. 

6  NEW PREMISES LICENCE APPLICATION FOR RELAX COFFEE 
LOUNGE, DORCHESTER

37 - 66



An application has been made for a new premises licence for Relax 
Coffee Lounge in Dorchester. The application has been out to public 
consultation and has attracted a relevant representation. A Licensing 
Sub-Committee must consider the application and representations at a 
public hearing. 

7  EXEMPT BUSINESS

To move the exclusion of the press and the public for the following 
item in view of the likely disclosure of exempt information within the 
meaning of paragraph x of schedule 12 A to the Local Government Act 
1972 (as amended). 

The public and the press will be asked to leave the meeting whilst the 
item of business is considered.



This page is intentionally left blank



THE LICENSING ACT 2003 (HEARINGS) REGULATIONS 2005

Rights of a Party

1. A party has the right to attend the hearing and may be represented by any 
person. 

2. A party is entitled to give further information where the authority has asked 
for clarification.

3. A party can question another party, and/or address the authority, with 
consent of the authority.  

Failure to Attend

4. If the authority is informed a party does not wish to attend, the hearing may 
proceed in their absence. 

5. If a party has not indicated their attendance and fails to attend the hearing 
may be adjourned if considered in the public interest, or hold the hearing 
ensuring the party’s representation is considered. 

6. Where the authority adjourns the hearing it shall notify the parties of the 
date, time and place. 

Procedural Information

7. At the start of the hearing, the authority shall explain the procedure which 
it proposes to follow and shall consider any request for permission for 
another person to appear at the hearing.

8. A hearing shall take the form of a discussion led by the authority and 
cross-examination shall not be permitted unless the authority considers 
that it is required. 

9. The authority will allow the parties an equal maximum period of time in 
which to speak. 

10. The authority may require any person behaving disruptively to leave, and 
may refuse that person to return, but such a person may, before the end of 
the hearing, submit in writing information they would have been entitled to 
give orally had they not been required to leave.

FOOTNOTE:

In relation to all other matters governed by the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) 
Regulations 2005 any party or their representative may contact the Licensing 
Services at Dorset Council and they will be provided with a full copy of the 
regulations on request.

Page 5

Agenda Item 1



LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE PROCEDURE

1. At the start of the meeting the Chairman will introduce:
 the members of the sub-committee
 the council officers present
 the parties and their representatives

2. The Chairman will then deal with any appropriate agenda items.

3. The Licensing Officer will be asked to outline the details of the application,   
including details of any withdrawn representations. 

4. The applicant or their representative is then invited to present their case.

5. Committee members will be invited to ask questions.

6. Where appropriate the Responsible Bodies e.g. representatives of Police, 
Fire Services, Environmental Services or Trading Standards will be invited 
to address the sub-committee on any relevant representations they may 
have.

7. The Chairman may then allow an opportunity for questions.

8. The Chairman will ask any person who has made representations, who 
have already expressed a wish to do so, to address the sub-committee.  
The sub-committee will have read all the papers before them, including 
any letters of representation.  Members of the public are asked to keep 
their comments concise and to the point.

9. The Local Ward Member, if present, will be given an opportunity to 
address the sub-committee.

10. All parties will be given the opportunity to “sum up” their case.

11. The Chairman will ask the Legal Advisor if all relevant points have been 
addressed before advising all parties present that the sub-committee will 
withdraw from the meeting to consider its decision in private.  The sub-
committee will be accompanied by the Democratic Services Officer and 
the Legal Advisor can be called upon to offer legal guidance.

12. On returning the Chairman will:

Page 6



 Notify all those present of the sub-committee’s decision (or indicate 
when it will be made)

 Give brief details of any conditions attached to the licence approval;
Or
 Outline the reasons for the refusal
 Inform that detailed reasons will follow in writing (unless given on the 

day)
 Inform those present of their right to appeal to the Magistrates’ Court

NOTE

The Chairman may vary this procedure, as circumstances require but will have 
regard to the rules of natural justice and the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) 
Regulations 2005.

The meeting will take place in public.  However, the public can be excluded 
from all or part of the meeting where the sub-committee considers that the 
public interest in so doing outweighs the public interest in the meeting or that 
part of the meeting, taking place in public.

Under no circumstances must the parties or their witnesses offer the sub-
committee information in the absence of the other parties.

The Chairman and the Sub-Committee have discretion whether to allow new 
information or documents to be submitted and read at the meeting.

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Licensing Sub-Committee
8 June 2021
Variation for The Cider Shed, Burton 
Bradstock

For Decision

Portfolio Holder: Cllr J Haynes, Customer and Community Services

Local Councillor(s): Cllr M Roberts

Executive Director: J Sellgren, Executive Director of Place
 

Report Author: Aileen Powell
Title: Licensing Team Leader
Tel: 01258 484022
Email: aileen.powell@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk

Report Status:  Public

Recommendation: The Sub-Committee determines the application in the light of 
written and oral evidence and resolves to take such steps as it considers 
appropriate and proportionate for the promotion of the licensing objectives of;

a) The prevention of crime and disorder
b) The prevention of public nuisance
c) Public safety
d) The protection of children from harm

Reason for Recommendation: The Sub-Committee must consider the oral 
representations and information given at the hearing before reaching a decision.      

1. Executive Summary 

An application has been made to vary the licence at The Cider Shed, Bredy 
Farm, Burton Bradstock. The application has been out to public consultation and 
attracted representations. A Licensing Sub-Committee must consider the 
application and representations at a public hearing. 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



2. Financial Implications

Any decision of the Sub-Committee could lead to an appeal by any of the parties 
involved that could incur costs.
 
3. Climate implications

None

4. Other Implications

Public Health and Community Safety

5. Risk Assessment

Having considered the risks associated with this decision, the level of risk has 
been identified as:
Current Risk: Low
Residual Risk: Low

6. Equalities Impact Assessment

Not Applicable

7. Appendices

Appendix 1 – Current Licence
Appendix 2 – Application
Appendix 3 – Representations 

8. Background Papers

Licensing Act  
Section 182 Guidance  
LGA Councillors Handbook  
EHRC - Guide to the Human Rights Act for Public Authorities  

9. Details

9.1. Charlie Harris is the holder of the premises licence for The Shed, which is 
one of three licences on Bredy Farm, Burton Bradstock. The licence 
currently allows: -

Sale of alcohol on and off the premises
Monday to Sunday 09:00 to 22:30

The current licence is attached at appendix 1.

Page 10

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2003/17/part/3/crossheading/variation-of-licences
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/705588/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Licensing_Act_2003__April_2018_.pdf
https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/10%2036_Licensing_Act_2003_V04%203_1.pdf
file:///C:/Users/powella.NORDON/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/IE/YZ6XJIW5/human_rights_human_lives_a_guide_for_public_authorities.pdf


9.2. Mr Harris has applied to vary the area covered by this licence (WDPL0666) 
to include an area previously licensed under the Parlour Licence 
(WDPL0769). 

9.3. The part of the application relating to live music has been withdrawn.

9.4. There were originally four representations, but two of them were withdrawn 
when the live music element of the application was withdrawn.

9.5. Two representations remain, one objecting to the variation because of the 
nuisance from music noise and people leaving the venue and one 
supporting the application. The representations are attached at appendix 3.

10. Considerations

10.1. The Live Music Act 2012 allows any premises with a licence that allows the 
consumption of alcohol on the premises to have live amplified music 
between 08:00 and 23:00 without a licence. This only applies when the 
audience is under 500 people. The Legislative Reform (Entertainment 
Licensing) Order 2014 has amended the Licensing Act so that there is a 
similar provision for recorded music. This regulation also contains the 
provision that any conditions relating to any of this entertainment would not 
have any effect between 8am and 11pm. There is a safeguard within the 
Licensing Act that at a Review hearing the provisions of the Live Music Act 
could be disapplied.

10.2. Paragraphs 9.42 to 9.44 of the Section 182 Guidance sets how the 
Authority should decide what actions are appropriate.

9.42 Licensing authorities are best placed to determine what actions 
are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives in their 
areas. All licensing determinations should be considered on a case-
by-case basis. They should take into account any representations or 
objections that have been received from responsible authorities or 
other persons, and representations made by the applicant or premises 
user as the case may be. 

9.43 The authority’s determination should be evidence-based, justified 
as being appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives and 
proportionate to what it is intended to achieve. 

9.44 Determination of whether an action or step is appropriate for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives requires an assessment of what 
action or step would be suitable to achieve that end. While this does 

Page 11



not therefore require a licensing authority to decide that no lesser step 
will achieve the aim, the authority should aim to consider the potential 
burden that the condition would impose on the premises licence holder 
(such as the financial burden due to restrictions on licensable 
activities) as well as the potential benefit in terms of the promotion of 
the licensing objectives. However, it is imperative that the authority 
ensures that the factors which form the basis of its determination are 
limited to consideration of the promotion of the objectives and nothing 
outside those parameters. As with the consideration of licence 
variations, the licensing authority should consider wider issues such 
as other conditions already in place to mitigate potential negative 
impact on the promotion of the licensing objectives and the track 
record of the business. Further advice on determining what is 
appropriate when imposing conditions on a licence or certificate is 
provided in Chapter 10. The licensing authority is expected to come to 
its determination based on an assessment of the evidence on both the 
risks and benefits either for or against making the determination.

10.3. Chapter 10 of the section182 Guidance relates to the imposition of 
conditions on licences and is attached in full at appendix 7. Conditions 
should be tailored to the size, type, location and characteristics and 
activities taking place at the premises concerned, they should be 
determined on a case-by-case basis and standardised conditions which 
ignore these individual aspects should be avoided. (from the Guidance 
paragraph 10.10)

11. Recommendation

11.1. The Sub-Committee determines the application in the light of written and 
oral evidence and resolves to take such steps as it considers appropriate 
and proportionate for the promotion of the licensing objectives of;
a) the prevention of crime and disorder
b) the prevention of public nuisance
c) public safety
d) the protection of children from harm.

11.2. The steps that the Sub-Committee may take are to: 
a) modify the conditions of the licence, or
b) reject the whole or part of the variation.

Footnote:
Issues relating to financial, legal, environmental, economic and equalities 
implications have been considered and any information relevant to the decision is 
included within the report.

Page 12



Licensing Department 
Dorset Council

South Walks House
South Walks Road

Dorchester
DT1 1UZ

licensingteamb@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk

Licensing Act 2003

Premises Licence WDPL0666

POSTAL ADDRESS OF PREMISES, OR IF NONE, ORDNANCE SURVEY MAP REFERENCE OR DESCRIPTION

Bredy Farm
Bredy Lane, Burton Bradstock, Bridport, Dorset, DT6 4ND.

WHERE THE LICENCE IS TIME LIMITED THE DATES

Not applicable

LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES AUTHORISED BY THE LICENCE

a performance of live music-

any playing of recorded music-

the supply of alcohol-

THE TIMES THE LICENCE AUTHORISES THE CARRYING OUT OF LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES

Activity (and Area if applicable) Description Time From Time To

E.  Performance of live music (Indoors & Outdoors)
Friday & Saturday
Sunday

F.  Playing of recorded music (Indoors & Outdoors)
Monday to Sunday

J. Supply of alcohol for consumption ON and OFF the premises
Monday to Sunday 9:00am 10:30pm

THE OPENING HOURS OF THE PREMISES

Description Time From Time To

Monday to Sunday 9:00am 10:30pm

WHERE THE LICENCE AUTHORISES SUPPLIES OF ALCOHOL WHETHER THESE ARE ON AND / OR OFF SUPPLIES

- J. Supply of alcohol for consumption ON and OFF the premises

Part 2

NAME, (REGISTERED) ADDRESS, TELEPHONE NUMBER AND EMAIL (WHERE RELEVANT) OF HOLDER OF PREMISES LICENCE

Charles Harris

REGISTERED NUMBER OF HOLDER, FOR EXAMPLE COMPANY NUMBER, CHARITY NUMBER (WHERE APPLICABLE)

NAME, ADDRESS AND TELEPHONE NUMBER OF DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR OR MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE WHERE THE
PREMISES LICENCE AUTHORISES THE SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

Charles HARRIS

Part 1 - Premises Details

Printed by LalPac on 24 May 2021 at 11:29 Page 1 of 5WDPL0666/47475Page 13

aileen.powell
Typewriter
Appendix 1 - Licence



Licensing Department 
Dorset Council

South Walks House
South Walks Road

Dorchester
DT1 1UZ

licensingteamb@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk

Licensing Act 2003

Premises Licence WDPL0666
PERSONAL LICENCE NUMBER AND ISSUING AUTHORITY OF PERSONAL LICENCE HELD BY DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR
WHERE THE PREMISES LICENCE AUTHORISES FOR THE SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

PA1342Licence No. Issued by West Dorset

ANNEXES

APPENDIX 1 - MANDATORY CONDITIONS

1.Designated Premises Supervisor
No supply of alcohol may be made under this premises licence -
(i) at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises licence, or
(ii) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or his personal licence is suspended.

Every supply of alcohol under this premises licence must be made or authorised by a person who holds a personal licence.

2. 1) The responsible person shall take all reasonable steps to ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out, arrange or 
participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.

2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following activities, or substantially similar activities, 
carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises in a manner which carries a 
significant risk of leading or contributing to crime and disorder, prejudice to public safety, public nuisance, or harm to children-

(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or encourage, individuals to-

(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or supplied on the premises before the 
cessation of the period in which the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or 

(ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise); 

(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted fee to the public or to a group defined 
by a particular characteristic (other than any promotion or discount available to an individual in respect of alcohol for 
consumption at a table meal, as defined in section 159 of the Act); 

(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or reward the purchase and consumption of 
alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less; 

(d) provision of free or discounted alcohol in relation to the viewing on the premises of a sporting event, where that provision is 
dependent on-

(i) the outcome of a race, competition or other event or process, or 

(ii) the likelihood of anything occurring or not occurring; 

(e) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in the vicinity of, the premises which can 
reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in 
any favourable manner. 

3. The responsible person shall ensure that no alcohol is dispensed directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than where that 
other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of a disability).

4. The responsible person shall ensure that free tap water is provided on request to customers where it is reasonably available.

5. (1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder shall ensure that an age verification policy applies to the premises in 
relation to the sale or supply of alcohol.

(2) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be 
specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and a 
holographic mark.

6. The responsible person shall ensure that:

(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or 
supplied having been made up in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available to customers in the
following measures-

Printed by LalPac on 24 May 2021 at 11:29 Page 2 of 5WDPL0666/47475Page 14



Licensing Department 
Dorset Council

South Walks House
South Walks Road

Dorchester
DT1 1UZ

licensingteamb@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk

Licensing Act 2003

Premises Licence WDPL0666
ANNEXES  continued ...

(i) beer or cider: ½ pint; 

(ii) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 

(iii) still wine in a glass: 125 ml; and 

(b) customers are made aware of the availability of these measures.

7. 1.  A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the premises for a price which is less 
than the permitted price.
 2.  For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1-

(a)“duty” is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979(6); .
(b)“permitted price” is the price found by applying the formula- .

where-

(i) P is the permitted price, 
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on the date of the sale or 

supply of the alcohol, and
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value added tax were charged on the 

date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;

(c) relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a premises licence-

(i) the holder of the premises licence,
(ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or 
(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a licence;

(d) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club premises certificate, any 
member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the 
supply in question; and

(e) “value added tax” means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax Act 1994(7).

3 Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this paragraph) not be a whole number of 
pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to 
the nearest penny.

4. (1)  Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 on a day (“the first day”) would 
be different from the permitted price on the next day (“the second day”) as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added 
tax.
(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of alcohol which take place before the 
expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second day. 

APPENDIX 2 - OPERATING SCHEDULE

Additional conditions consistent with the operating schedule.

Protection of Children from harm.

-No children (person under 18) will be allowed on the premises unless accompanied by an adult (person over 18). 

-The only forms of I.D. that will be accepted is a photo card driving licence, Passport or a PASS accredited card. 

Printed by LalPac on 24 May 2021 at 11:29 Page 3 of 5WDPL0666/47475Page 15



Page 16

aileen.powell_1
Typewriter
Appendix 2 - Application



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



From:                                              
Sent:                                               10 May 2021 13:10
To:                                                  LicensingTeamB; LicensingTeamB
Subject:                                         To Roy Keepax re: Bredy Farm Applica�on P/CONS/2021/00053
 

Categories:                                   Roy K
 
We are  Annings Lane, Burton Bradstock, DT6
4NG so live on the other side of Annings Lane adjacent to Bredy Farm land.
 
We write to object to proposed changes to the current license.  Whether it is classed as
the Parlour, the Cider Shed or whatever else, the facts remain that any area which is as
close to other residents as this is with a license for alcohol and live music is going to cause
noise and inconvenience when people leave Bredy at the end of the night.  To alter
trading hours from Friday to Sunday, closing at 2300 hrs to Monday to Sunday closing at
2345 hrs is extremely unfair on the rest of us.  Mr. Harris has built a stage in an open
fronted barn [presumably without permission, as is his usual way] so there is no chance of
the noise being contained.   As you may be aware, we already experience problems with
overloud music at various �mes.  Living in a valley means noise carries extremely well
[par�cularly if the wind is in the wrong direc�on]. If people are being served up un�l 2345
hours and then have �me to finish their drinks they will be leaving in the early hours and
driving/walking past our property.  It is not unreasonable, in a rural area, to expect to be
able to go t eo bed and sleep b fore midnight without being awoken, nor to use our private
gardens during the summer without disturbance.
 
It seems there is one rule for Harris and one for the rest of the county.  

 Our parents bought this
bungalow some 40 years ago and when we moved in at the end of 2013 our "hamlet"
consisted of Graston House, four co�ages, Graston Farm and associated holiday co�ages
and camp site and Bredy was a farm.  We accept that in this day and age farmers have to
diversify but not to the extent that all exis�ng residents are inconvenienced to this
extent.  The people actually living in Burton Bradstock will also be affected [as now, with
the fes�vals] by dis rturbance f om people leaving late.
 
Historically, whenever we have a problem with Mr. Harris it seems our Council, to whom
we all pay our taxes, is not the least bit inclined to take no�ce or assist us.  Please do not

o go through as it will destroy our lifestyle - to say nothing of

 
 Yours faithfully,

    

  oper�es, making them unsaleable.
allow this change of license t 
the devaluing of our pr

Page 34

mailto:LicensingTeamB@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk
mailto:LicensingTeamB@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk
aileen.powell_2
Typewriter
Appendix 3 - Representations



Email of Support 
 

Formal response. 

I support this licence variation . 

This farm is isolated surrounded by open land so the sound impact on distant houses is minimal. 

It is well run and attracts responsible guests and so I am satisfied that the 4 tests are fully answered 

positively. 

 

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



Licensing Sub-Committee
8 June 2021
New Premises Licence Application for Relax 
Coffee Lounge, Dorchester

For Decision

Portfolio Holder: Cllr J Haynes, Customer and Community Services

Local Councillor(s): Cllrs L Fry and A Canning

Executive Director: J Sellgren, Executive Director of Place
 

Report Author: Aileen Powell
Title: Licensing Team Leader
Tel: 01258 484022
Email: aileen.powell@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk

Report Status:  Public

Recommendation: The Sub-Committee determines the application in the light of 
written and oral evidence and resolves to take such steps as it considers 
appropriate and proportionate for the promotion of the licensing objectives of;

a) The prevention of crime and disorder
b) The prevention of public nuisance
c) Public safety
d) The protection of children from harm

Reason for Recommendation: The Sub-Committee must consider the oral 
representations and information given at the hearing before reaching a decision.      

1. Executive Summary 

An application has been made for a new premises licence for Relax Coffee 
Lounge in Dorchester. The application has been out to public consultation and 
has attracted a relevant representation. A Licensing Sub-Committee must 
consider the application and representations at a public hearing. 

Page 37

Agenda Item 6



2. Financial Implications

Any decision of the Sub-Committee could lead to an appeal by any of the parties 
involved that could incur costs.
 
3. Climate implications

None

4. Other Implications

Public Health and Community Safety

5. Risk Assessment

Having considered the risks associated with this decision, the level of risk has 
been identified as:
Current Risk: Low
Residual Risk: Low

6. Equalities Impact Assessment

Not Applicable

7. Appendices

Appendix 1 – Application
Appendix 2 – Representation
Appendix 3 – Responses to Representation

8. Background Papers

Licensing Act  
Live Music Act
Section 182 Guidance  
Dorset Council Licensing Policy
LGA Councillors Handbook  
EHRC - Guide to the Human Rights Act for Public Authorities  

9. Details

9.1. Relax Coffee Lounge Ltd have applied for a premises licence at 9-9a South 
Street, Dorchester, DT1 1BN. 

Page 38

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2003/17/part/3/crossheading/variation-of-licences
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2012/2/contents/enacted
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/705588/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Licensing_Act_2003__April_2018_.pdf
https://www.dorsetcouncil.gov.uk/business-consumers-licences/licences-and-permits/alcohol-and-entertainment-licences/pdfs/statement-of-licensing-policies/dorset-council-statement-of-licensing-policy-final-01-02-2020.pdf
https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/10%2036_Licensing_Act_2003_V04%203_1.pdf
file:///C:/Users/powella.NORDON/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/IE/YZ6XJIW5/human_rights_human_lives_a_guide_for_public_authorities.pdf


9.2. The description of the premises within the application form is that it will be a 
café/restaurant/lounge with 80 covers, serving hot and cold meals. The full 
application and plan for the premises is attached at appendix 1.

9.3. The application is to permit the on sales of alcohol, on the premises only: -

Monday to Saturday 11:00 to 23:00
Sunday 11:00 to 22:00

With the premises opening hours of: -

Monday to Saturday 07:30 to 23:00
Sunday 08:00 to 22:00

9.4. The application has been advertised on the premises, in a newspaper and 
the Council’s web site.

9.5. One representation was received objecting to the application. Whilst “need” 
is not a relevant consideration under the Licensing Act 2003, the nuisance 
of people exiting the premises is relevant to the licensing objective of “the 
prevention of public nuisance”.  The representation is included in full at 
appendix 2.

9.6. Following receipt of the representation the applicants has responded to the 
points raised. The response in full is attached at appendix 3.

10. Considerations

10.1. Paragraphs 9.42 to 9.44 of the Section 182 Guidance sets how the 
Authority should decide what actions are appropriate.

“9.42 Licensing authorities are best placed to determine what actions 
are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives in their 
areas. All licensing determinations should be considered on a case-
by-case basis. They should take into account any representations or 
objections that have been received from responsible authorities or 
other persons, and representations made by the applicant or premises 
user as the case may be. 

9.43 The authority’s determination should be evidence-based, justified 
as being appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives and 
proportionate to what it is intended to achieve. 

9.44 Determination of whether an action or step is appropriate for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives requires an assessment of what 

Page 39



action or step would be suitable to achieve that end. While this does 
not therefore require a licensing authority to decide that no lesser step 
will achieve the aim, the authority should aim to consider the potential 
burden that the condition would impose on the premises licence holder 
(such as the financial burden due to restrictions on licensable 
activities) as well as the potential benefit in terms of the promotion of 
the licensing objectives. However, it is imperative that the authority 
ensures that the factors which form the basis of its determination are 
limited to consideration of the promotion of the objectives and nothing 
outside those parameters. As with the consideration of licence 
variations, the licensing authority should consider wider issues such 
as other conditions already in place to mitigate potential negative 
impact on the promotion of the licensing objectives and the track 
record of the business. Further advice on determining what is 
appropriate when imposing conditions on a licence or certificate is 
provided in Chapter 10. The licensing authority is expected to come to 
its determination based on an assessment of the evidence on both the 
risks and benefits either for or against making the determination.”

10.3.  The Live Music Act 2012 allows any premises with a licence that allows the 
consumption of alcohol on the premises to have live amplified music 
between 08:00 and 23:00 without a licence. This only applies when the 
audience is under 500 people. The Legislative Reform (Entertainment 
Licensing) Order 2014 has amended the Licensing Act so that there is a 
similar provision for recorded music, and also states that any conditions 
relating to any of this entertainment would not have any effect between 
8am and 11pm. There is a safeguard within the Licensing Act that at a 
Review hearing the provisions of the Live Music Act could be disapplied.

11. Recommendation

11.1. The Sub-Committee determines the application in the light of written and 
oral evidence and resolves to take such steps as it considers appropriate 
and proportionate for the promotion of the licensing objectives of;

a) the prevention of crime and disorder
b) the prevention of public nuisance
c) public safety
d) the protection of children from harm.

Page 40



11.2. The steps that the Sub-Committee may take are: 

a) to grant the licence subject to such conditions as the authority 
considers appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives, 
and the mandatory conditions

b) to exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities 
to which the application relates;

c) to refuse to specify a person in the licence as the designated premises 
supervisor;

d) to reject the application.

11.3. Appendix 4 contains a list of conditions that are consistent with the 
operating schedule and would be attached to a licence if granted. 

Footnote:
Issues relating to financial, legal, environmental, economic and equalities 
implications have been considered and any information relevant to the decision is 
included within the report.

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 43

aileen.powell_3
Typewriter
Appendix 1 - Application



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



 Appendix 2 – Representation 
 

 

To Whom it May Concern 

 We wish to object to the application for an alcohol license being made by Relax Coffee Bar of 9/9a Tudor 

Arcade, Dorchester (see above licence registration number).  

1. Relax is a fast food cafe and it is beyond our comprehension that such an outlet needs to sell alcohol 

from 11am to 11pm daily and 11am-10pm on Sundays. 

2. Tudor Arcade has always been a shopping arcade with shops open daily from 9am-5.30pm (except 

Waitrose, open until 8pm).  There has occasionally been cafes located here, opening 9am-6pm but they 

have never been successful.  It is not a suitable location for a wine bar. 

3. We understand that this double unit can cater for up to 80 people.  It concerns us that this amount of 

people spilling out into the arcade between 11pm and 12am at night would be a recipe for alcohol-

fuelled trouble and leave our workplaces extremely vulnerable to vandalism and window breakage, not 

to mention problems of urine and vomit.  Existing traders have worked very hard to maintain high 

standards of cleanliness and tidiness during the XX years that we have been located here. 

4. If this license is allowed, we are certain there will be a follow up application for an extension to, say 

2am, at which point Relax would become a fully fledged night club. 

 

Page 63



Appendix 3 - Response from Applicant 
 

To Whom it May Concern 

 We wish to object to the application for an alcohol license being made by Relax Coffee Bar of 9/9a Tudor 

Arcade, Dorchester (see above licence registration number).  

1. Relax is a fast food cafe and it is beyond our comprehension that such an outlet needs to sell alcohol 

from 11am to 11pm daily and 11am-10pm on Sundays. 

Relax is not a fast food cafe, it is a coffee lounge and cafe which serves meals and snacks. We do offer a 

small take away offering but this will not include alcohol. We do not 'need' to sell alcohol but would like 

to as this would offer a full service offering to our clientele. We have researched the market place and 

this is exactly what customers have asked us for. 

2. Tudor Arcade has always been a shopping arcade with shops open daily from 9am-5.30pm (except 

Waitrose, open until 8pm).  There has occasionally been cafes located here, opening 9am-6pm but they 

have never been successful.  It is not a suitable location for a wine bar. 

I'm not sure how to answer this as it is this persons personal view. We feel it is an ideal location and 

many customers and members of the public have said it is exactly what the town needs.  

3. We understand that this double unit can cater for up to 80 people.  It concerns us that this amount of 

people spilling out into the arcade between 11pm and 12am at night would be a recipe for alcohol-

fuelled trouble and leave our workplaces extremely vulnerable to vandalism and window breakage, not 

to mention problems of urine and vomit.  Existing traders have worked very hard to maintain high 

standards of cleanliness and tidiness during the XX years that we have been located here. 

The venue does seat around 80 people but in the evening we intend on having less seating available for 

an even more comfortable environment. In addition to this for the acoustic live music we have planned, 

which will be background type music and will take up room in the venue too. 

We also plan it to be a relaxing venue, hence the name, and appeal to the more mature market and not 

the types suggested. Also all staff will be trained and advised not to serve drunk individuals as is 

required by law. 

We will not be providing take away alcohol so there should be no issue of litter also. 

I would stress again that the type of customer suggested is NOT who we will be aiming to attract. 

We have a designated premises supervisor and also qualified licence holders who will ensure licencing 

regulations are adhered to fully.  

4. If this license is allowed, we are certain there will be a follow up application for an extension to, say 

2am, at which point Relax would become a fully fledged night club. 

As above this is not what we want. The venue has big windows and doesn't suit a nightclub venue 

anyway. 

Page 64



Appendix 4 - Conditions Consistent with The Operating Schedule 
  

The Prevention of Crime and Disorder 
1. A Closed-Circuit Television (CCTV) system will be operational at the premises at all times when 

licensable activities are being carried out and at any other times when members of the public are 

present on the premises. 

2. The PLH/DPS staff will ask for proof of age from any person appearing to be under the age of 25 who 

attempts to purchase alcohol at the premises. 

3. A log shall be kept detailing all refused sales of alcohol. The log should include the date and time of 

the refused sale, a description of the person refused, why they were refused (e.g. no ID, fake ID) and the 

name of the member of staff who refused the sale. The log shall be available for inspection at the 

premises by the police or an authorised officer of a Responsible Authority (Licensing Act 2003).  

  

Public Safety 
1. Written records of all accidents and safety incidents involving members of the public and/or staff will 

be kept. These will be made available at the request of an authorised officer. 

  

The Prevention of Public Nuisance 
1. A clear notice shall be displayed at every exit from the premises to instruct customers to respect the 

needs of local residents and leave the premises and the area quietly.   

2. The premises licence holder shall ensure that a sufficient number of suitable receptacles are located 

in appropriate locations for the depositing of waste materials such as food wrappings, drinks containers, 

smoking related litter, etc. by customers.  

  

The Protection of Children from Harm 
1. The Licensee will ensure that each member of staff authorised to sell alcohol has received adequate 

training on the law with regard to age restricted products and that this has been properly documented 

and training records kept. The training record to be kept on the licensed premises and made available 

for inspection by the Licensing Officer, Trading Standards or the Police.  

2. The Licensee will ensure that each member of staff authorised to sell alcohol is fully aware of his /her 

responsibilities in relation to verifying a customer's age and is able to effectively question purchasers 

and check evidence of proof of age. 

Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Election of Chairman and Statement for the Procedure of the Meeting
	5 Variation for The Cider Shed, Burton Bradstock
	Appendices Redacted_Redacted Bredy Farm
	Jon Orrell Support.docx
	Email of Support

	Jon Orrell Support.docx
	Email of Support



	6 New Premises Licence Application for Relax Coffee Lounge, Dorchester
	Appendices Redacted - Relax
	Appendix 2 - Representation.docx
	Appendix 2 – Representation

	Appendix 3 - Response from Applicant.docx
	Appendix 3 - Response from Applicant

	Appendix 4 - Conditions Consitent with the Operating Schedule.docx
	Appendix 4 - Conditions Consistent with The Operating Schedule
	The Prevention of Crime and Disorder
	Public Safety
	The Prevention of Public Nuisance
	The Protection of Children from Harm





